
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, May 21, 2013 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 May 14, 2013 
 May 15, 2013 

 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
    
   Building 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000 
Central Services 
b. Contract w/Cerium Networks, Inc. for Purchase of Meraki Cloud Managed Access Points  
Commissioners 
c. City of Richland Letter of Support for Duportail Bridge Project    
d. Award of Bid for Official County Newspaper to Tri City Herald  
Facilities 
e.  Bid Award for the District Court Remodel @ the Courthouse 
Fairgrounds 
f. Contract w/Oxarc, Inc to Provide Fire Extinguisher & Suppression Services  
g. Contract w/Design West Architects, PA for Architectural Services for Fairgrounds Restroom   
h. Amended Lease Agreement w/Benton-Franklin Fair Association     
Human Services 
i. Amended Agreement w/Comprehensive/Dependency Health Services for Substance Abuse 

Treatment     
Juvenile 
j. Amended Contract w/The Personal Touch Cleaning, Inc. 
Office of Public Defense 
k. Authorization for Payment to Attorney M Iaria for Public Defense Services    
l. Contract w/T Orosco for Excess Contractual Case Cap  
Personnel 
m. Trainer Contract w/C Poulsen 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Text Box
to view items in detail, please click on highlighted areas

mf
Highlight



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
May 21, 2013 
Page 2 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

Prosecuting Attorney 
n. Settlement Agreement w/The Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation 
Public Works 
o. Funding Authorization for Nine Canyon Road, Phase 2 
p. Funding Authorization for Nine Canyon Road, Phase 3 
q. Drainage Improvement District Budget & Levy for 2013 & 2014 
Sheriff  
r. Amended Contract w/American Red Cross to Provide Employee Training   
s. Swat Interlocal Agreement w/City of Prosser 
t. Contract w/Densow’s Pharmacy for Pharmaceutical Services  
Sustainable Development 
u. Agreement w/Tri-City Development Council for Economic Development   
 
Scheduled Business 

 
Central Services Department Update ~ T Holmes    
 
Geological Fault Line Mapping Request ~ D Ford 
 
Proposed Kennewick Shop Update ~ S Becken 
 
Unscheduled Visitors 

   Board Assignment Update      
    
                                        Executive Session
 
                                         Potential Litigation 

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, May 14, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner James Beaver  
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; County Engineer Daniel Ford; Planning 
Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court; Clerk Josie 
Delvin; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Sue Schuetze, Public Works; Erhiza Rivera and Nick Kooiker, 
Treasurer’s Office; Clark Posey, Planning; Teri Holmes, Central Services; DPA Steve 
Hallstsrom; Aileen Coverdell, Auditor’s Office.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of May 7, 2013 were approved.   
 
Agenda Review 
 
Chairman Small requested to add agenda item “u” (Collective Bargaining Agreement – Road 
Department) to consent agenda.   
 
Additionally, he said the scheduled discussion with WSU regarding Regional Tree Fruit was 
cancelled.  
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “t”, 
adding “u” (CBA 2013 B etween Teamsters and Road Department).  Commissioner Beaver 
seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Animal Control 

a. Contract w/Tri-City Fence, Inc for Installation of Chain Link Fence    
Commissioners 

b. Reappointment of L Bunch to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council  



 - 2 - 

c. Reappointment of C Adrian to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council   
d. Reappointment of C Freed to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
e. Reappointment of N Moorer to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
f. Reappointment of T Samuel to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
g. Appointment of D Donley to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
h. Appointment of G Gales to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 

Facilities 
i.  Contract w/Banlin Construction to Install New Window @ the Jail 

Fairgrounds 
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 

Human Services 
k. Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Rehabilitation Project Funding   
l. Grant Agreement w/Catholic Family & Child Service of the Tri-Cities for Rental 

Assistance 
Juvenile 

m. Amended Contract w/Educational Services District 123   
Office of Public Defense 

n. Termination of Superior Court Legal Financial Obligation Public Defense Contract w/J 
Azure 

o. Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/S Henwood 
p. Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/D Stovern 

Public Works 
q. Lease Agreement w/L&M Truck Sales, Inc. 
r. Order & Agreement for the City of Prosser Franchise  

Sheriff 
s. Amended Contract w/Bergstrom Aircraft, Inc. for Aircraft Maintenance & Repair 
t. Purchase Agreement w/Office Depot for Office Supplies 

Prosecuting Attorney 
u. CBA – Teamsters and Road Department 

 
Public Hearing - Desert Winds Wireless Inc. – Franchise 
 
Sue Schuetze presented the application by Desert Winds Wireless Inc. to create a new utility 
franchise order and agreement.  S he said that Public Works recommended approval of the 
creation of a franchise order and agreement with Desert Winds Wireless, Inc. subject to the six 
listed conditions.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve with the franchise application filed by 
Desert Winds Wireless, Inc. subject to the six listed conditions in the Engineer’s report.  
Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 



 - 3 - 

Public Hearing - Ordinance Amendment Relating to Public Records 
 
DPA Ryan Lukson via video conference presented the ordinance amendment relating to public 
records.  H e said the amendment would update statutory references and some practices and 
would clean up the ordinance overall.   
 
Public Testimony 
 
Jim Wade said he didn’t have any problem as long as it stayed as it should according to law 
relating to verbal requests.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said the Board could not make any changes that superseded state law.   
 
Mr. Lukson said basically it updated the code to document any verbal requests so the county 
could track those and get them done in a timely manner. 
 
As there was no one else present to testify, public testimony was closed.   
 
MOTION:  C ommissioner Beaver moved to approve the ordinance amendment relating to 
public records as presented.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Benton County Groundwater Discussion 
 
Commissioner Delvin said there was a groundwater task force and their purpose was to come up 
with an MOU on g roundwater management.  H e said he asked Darryll Olsen to propose an 
alternative to this process or recommend the Board approve the MOU.   
 
Mr. Olsen, Water Conservancy Board Chairman, said he talked with the Conservancy Board and 
Mark Nielsen, Conservation District, and they were recommending the Commissioners support a 
policy they think would be very high level.  It could follow existing water code, emphasize using 
existing programs in place, and try to get away from the regulatory over-burden this would 
create.  He said they felt there was enough regulation already in water policy and they attempted 
to address those high level pieces.  Additionally, the exempt wells were so small in the basin it 
was extremely difficult to measure and try to sort this out.  Instead, if the real concern was on the 
Yakima, they should pay attention to inefficiencies in the basin and look at conservation and use 
existing tools and give credit to the exempt wells and to additional measures.  That way they 
would be addressing real concerns for Ecology by focusing on doing something that would get 
more bang for the buck.  He said there was nothing wrong with the Commission going to the 
legislation to ask for money to help with the problems and take it to the Governor’s office and 
say this was a better model. 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he appreciated the presentation and expressed his concern about 
Ecology regulating and trying to make more money with this program.  He was in agreement 
with the concept and suggested Mr. Fyall meet with Mr. Olsen and look at drafting something up 
to approve.   



 - 4 - 

Commissioner Delvin said he was concerned that if they didn’t have a prepared response to the 
MOU, there would be something dropped on the County by some organization.  He said they 
should have a response ready and show some alternatives.   
 
The Board said it was in agreement with moving forward on a draft preferred alternative and 
discussing it further at the special meeting on May 15, 2013 at the Justice Center. 
 
Benton County Jail – Mental Health Enhancements – Pilot Program Discussion 
 
Ed Thornbrugh said he had been involved in discussion with leaders and chaplaincy in the 
Benton County Jail to focus on mental health enhancements in the jail.  He said they had talked 
about what they could do with available resources and who the partners should be.  He said the 
goal was improve access to a t rained prescriber in psychiatry, to move seriously mental ill 
inmates from booking to release and more accurately monitor and offset costs for prescriptions.  
He said it was their goal to see a reduction in suicide attempts and completions, minimize the use 
of extreme measures and the safety cell, and the number of days per event.  These reductions 
would also reduce the number of days for officers on suicide watch.  Additionally, they wanted 
to see if they could identify those high risk individuals and reduce costs associated with 
malingering (exaggerating the level of mental illness to get the use of prescriptions). 
 
Mr. Thornbrugh proposed publishing an RFQ for a qualified prescriber trained in psychiatry and 
preparing a contract with them for part time medical services.  Additionally, he wanted to move 
forward with adding a mental health resource person who was assigned to the jail team and use 
current resources for funding this and funding unreimbursed costs for psychotropic medication.   
 
The Board agreed to move forward.   
 
Update - Interfund Loan to Treasurer’s Investment Pool Fund  
 
Nick Kooiker said the Board authorized a transfer of funds from the Treasurer’s O & M fund to 
the Investment Pool to purchase new software in the amount of $70,000.  S ince August, 2012 
they had collected $38,000 in fees and it was their goal to pay back the loan in the biennial but 
that it should be paid back by the end of 2013.   
 
Animal Control Update 
 
Keith Mercer updated the Board on the Animal Control Department.  He gave statistics on dogs 
that were adopted, that died in the facility, were returned to owners, transferred out, or 
euthanized.  He stated the dogs were euthanized only if it was medically necessary or the animal 
was deemed dangerous or potentially dangerous.  A dditionally, Mr. Mercer talked about the 
average length of stay in the facility and said in 2011 i t was 43.5 days, 2012 it was 26.1 days, 
and in 2013 only 8.1 days.  He said their target for length of stay was 20 days and they attributed 
part of their success to transferring out dogs to no ki ll shelters and adoptions.  H e said they 
offered and encouraged a trial adoption for seven days for potential owners to see if the dog was 
a good fit for their family.  Additionally, trial adoptions provided good information on the dog to 
be used if the dog came back (whether it was housetrained, got along with cats, children, etc.).  



 - 5 - 

Solid Waste - Grant De-Obligation 
 
Steve Becken said the County received a grant from the Department of Ecology for the purpose 
of purchasing property for siting a Moderate Risk Waste Facility.  Additionally, they received a 
proposed amendment that would change the scope of the grant from purchasing a site to 
conducting a siting survey and authorizing equipment purchases for the compost facility at the 
Horn Rapids Landfill.  This would involve some changes from the original grant agreement since 
the City of Richland would be purchasing the equipment.  H e said they met with the City of 
Richland and agreed it would be best to request de-obligation of the grant funds, which would 
allow DOE and the City of Richland to enter into a separate agreement for purchase of 
equipment.  
 
Mr. Becken requested the Board sign a l etter to the Department of Ecology requesting de-
obligation of that grant.   
 
MOTION:  C ommissioner Beaver moved to approve the letter to the Department of Ecology 
requesting de-obligation of Grant No. G1300017. Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, 
the motion carried.    
 
Public Works - Kennewick Shop Discussion  
 
Steve Becken provided a report on the proposed new Kennewick shop.  He said that various sites 
were reviewed, water studies were complete, and the County purchased a 10-acre site in 2008 on 
land known as the Wiser property that met all the needs (domestic water and utilities were 
available).  He said they were requesting authorization to submit a Request for Qualifications to 
allow them to select an architect to design a new shop at the Wiser location.  Mr. Sparks said 
they were looking for authorization to engage an architect so the Board could evaluate the total 
cost and design.   
 
Mr. Becken said they originally had $2 million in ER&R funds they were going to use for the 
new shop, however, more than anticipated vehicles were going to be purchased and they now 
estimated conservatively they had $1,250,000 to $1,500,000 available in funds to build a shop.   
 
Chairman Small said he wanted to make sure they wouldn’t be asking to build a shop that it 
didn’t have funds for.  Mr. Becken stated that if the cost to build was more than funds available, 
they wouldn’t move forward at this time.   
 
Commissioner Delvin asked if they would need to add fuel tanks and Mr. Becken said he didn’t 
think they would need them; additionally, there was a Pacific Pride business close to the site.  
Commissioner Beaver asked if they had talked to the school district about this issue.  Mr. Becken 
said they had not at this time, but they knew the County owned the property.  C ommissioner 
Beaver said he thought it would be a good idea to meet with the school district as they went 
along in the process.  
 
David Sparks stated the County already owned the property, it was centrally located to the areas 
that Benton County needed access to, and they had already done a good job of analyzing the 



 - 6 - 

sites.  He agreed it was a good idea to talk with the school district since an elementary school 
was located right next to the property.   
 
The Board agreed that Public Works should talk to the school district and bring back the RFQ for 
approval.   
 
Unscheduled Visitors 
 
Jim Wade said he previously talked to the Board about moving the grandstands for the Horse 
Racing and was disappointed they were not moved when he was told they would be moved.  He 
said he hoped in the future the Board would have better communication with the Fair 
Association.   
 
Chairman Small said that once the issue was brought forward, the County Administrator met 
with the Fair Association regarding this issue.  Mr. Sparks said this was the first year the Fair 
Association put on t he horse racing and felt there was room for improvement with 
communication.  H e said that maybe next year they could be more involved so they could 
accommodate the horse racing group.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he met with some constituents in Kennewick, attended the car show 
in downtown Kennewick, attended a short elected officials meeting, and had a conversation with 
the Port of Kennewick about the upcoming election for Port Commissioners.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said he attended the employee recognition at Ben Franklin Transit, the 
WSAC Board of Directors meeting, the Transit meeting and public employee recognition event 
in Kennewick.   
 
Chairman Small presented a certificate of good practice issued by the County Road 
Administration Board to Steve Becken . 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he wanted to attend the ECA Peer Exchange on June 3 & 4 in Idaho 
Falls, Idaho.  Additionally, he said it was fully reimbursed by the ECA.  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve Commissioner Beaver’s travel for ECA as 
requested.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
David Sparks said there was a request from the City of Richland for support on the Duportail 
bridge project.  Mr. Sparks said it would be on the consent agenda the following week.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:39 a.m.  
 



 - 7 - 

Executive Session – Potential Litigation 
 
The Board went into executive session at 10:39 a.m. with DPA Steve Hallstrom for 
approximately 15 m inutes to discuss potential litigation regarding a personnel matter.   A lso 
present were Ryan Brown, Loretta Smith Kelty, David Sparks, Cami McKenzie, and Melina 
Wenner.  The Board came out at 10:49 a.m.  No decisions were made in executive session. 
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 5/10/2013 
Transfers #: 05050513, 010105131-010105133, 050205131-050505136 
Total all funds: $360,704.94 
 
Check Date:  05/10/2013 
Warrant #: 80335-80512 
Total all funds: $1,575,883.60 
 
Check Date:  05/09/2013 
Procurement Cards #: 0513 
Total all funds: $155,236.77 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2013-363: Contract w/Tri-City Fence, Inc. for Installation of Chain Link Fence   
2013-364: Reappointment of L Bunch to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development 

Council  
2013-365: Reappointment of C Adrian to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development 

Council   
2013-366: Reappointment of C Freed to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development 

Council 
2013-367: Reappointment of N Moorer to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development 

Council 
2013-368: Reappointment of T Samuel to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development 

Council 
2013-369: Appointment of D Donley to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development 

Council 
2013-370: Appointment of G Gales to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
2013-371: Contract w/Banlin Construction to Install New Window @ the Jail 
2013-372: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 
2013-373: Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Rehabilitation Project Funding   
2013-374: Grant Agreement w/Catholic Family & Child Service of the Tri-Cities for Rental 

Assistance 
2013-375: Amended Contract w/Educational Services District 123   
2013-376: Termination of Superior Court Legal Financial Obligation Public Defense 

Contract w/J Azure 



 - 8 - 

2013-377: Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/S Henwood 
2013-378: Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/D Stovern 
2013-379: Lease Agreement w/L&M Truck Sales, Inc. 
2013-380: Order & Agreement for the City of Prosser Franchise  
2013-381: Amended Contract w/Bergstrom Aircraft, Inc. for Aircraft Maintenance & Repair 
2013-382: Purchase Agreement w/Office Depot for Office Supplies 
2013-383: CBA – Teamsters and Road Department 
2013-384: Adoption of Ordinance 526 Relating to Public Records 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:50 
a.m. 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



1 
 

MINUTES 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Special Board Meeting 
Wednesday, May 15, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Justice Center, Kennewick, WA 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner  James Beaver  
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks 
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Adam Fyall, 
Sustainable Development; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Steve 
Brown, Building Department; Finance Manager Keith Mercer.   
 
Introduction and Overview of Water Issues  
 
Adam Fyall briefly reviewed the WRIA 31 (Water Resources Inventory Area 31 Rock/Glade) 
program and said they had been working on t his for over 10 years with the same team in 
place.  He said that Klickitat County was the lead agency and that Dave McClure had been 
the director since the beginning.   
 
WRIA 31: History, Accomplishments, Status 
 
Dave McClure gave a Powerpoint on the WRIA 31 and briefly discussed the following: 
  

• Klickitat County, Benton County, Yakima County and City of Kennewick agreed to 
initiate planning and ultimately Yakima County chose not to participate 

• Planning Unit Membership 
o 32 agencies identified; 20 + voting members; now down to 18 active members 

and citizens at large that participate at the meetings 
• Assessment Phase - $200,000 grant for level 1 assessment; level 2 f unding was 

completed after a couple of years – accepted 
• Planning Phase - another $250,000 grant received - solicited proposals for contractor 

to provide support (two year process); approved by Planning Unit in January 2008; 
completed a SEPA review process; then approved by Benton, Klickitat and Yakima 
Counties in April 2008 

 
Commissioner Beaver asked about Yakima County’s decision to not participate in the 
planning process but its ability to approve the plan.  Mr. McClure said that although 
Yakima County chose not to actively participate in the planning process, they reserved 
the right to have a seat at the table if at any point they didn't like what was going on. 

 
• Phase 4 Implementation  

o Funding for projects - Kennewick ASR (Aquifer Storage/Recovery), Water 
Storage Appraisal Assessment for Horse Heaven Hills; Rock Creek Water 



2 
 

Quality Improvement Plan; Pump Test to Determine Suitability of Aquifer for 
ASR 

• Ongoing Implementation Efforts 
o Support of VRA's; consult and advise on Columbia River water supply and 

demand inventory; communicate/coordinate with other Planning Units in the 
Columbia Basin; pursue legislation to address water right relinquishment - 
part of lobbying and his employment with Klickitat County; 

o Modest grant received for riparian planning to address Rock Creek 
temperatures; stream flow gage Rock Creek (Ecology) and various fish habitat 
related actions 

• Implementation - 2014  
o Entitled to up to $50,000 grant for watershed plan implementation  
o Proposed grants for the following: 
o Pump test to determine suitability of Aquifer for ASR;  
o Water Right bank/exchange; 
o Water Availability Assessment 
o Water Storage SEPA Scoping 
o Primary projects that he saw being funded would be in storage 

 
Horse Heaven Water Storage Project - Aspect Consulting   
 
Adam Fyall stated that in the past Benton County had been involved and exposed to other 
concepts for storage in the area and there were quite a few studies completed.  However, this 
was a different storage project that was a lot more realistic.   
 
Tim Flynn, Aspect Consulting reviewed his Powerpoint presentation and discussed the 
following: 
 

• WRIA 31 Storage Project History  - used previous study information so not to  
re-create the wheel; looked at a wide range of storage concepts when this started 

• Pre-Feasibility Study 
o Analysis of Water Demands Met w/Storage; Numerous Surface Reservoir 

Options Considered; Interaction with Local Stakeholders 
o Preferred Storage Alternatives 

 Alder Creek Reservoir 
 Switzler Canyon Reservoir 
 ASR in Western Horse Heaven 

o Water Storage Concept 
 Provide mitigation for new water rights; pump from Columbia 

River when water is available (Winter/Spring); pump into surface 
reservoirs; divert water from same pool or downstream; discharge 
equal volume of stored water from reservoir back to Columbia 
River 

o Final Report 
• Storage Appraisal Assessment – Phase 1 

o Fatal Flaw Analysis 
 Alder Creek Reservoir (fatally flawed due to landslide hazards) 
 Switzler Reservoir (no fatal flaws identified – proceed to Phase 2) 

• Storage Appraisal Assessment – Phase 2 



3 
 

o Project Overview; Engineering;  
o Cost Estimate  

 Capital $280 Million 
 Annual O & M + Power: $4.5 million 
 Amortized Cost: $430/acre-foot (cost to get water right; water 

delivery costs are extra) 
o Allocation/Funding Concepts 

• Next Steps for Switzler Reservoir 
o SEPA Scoping - Grant Application in for SEPA Scoping 
o Ancillary Tasks – Assess ASR for Horse Heaven 

 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:20 a.m.  
 
Salmon Recovery – Yakima Basin & Klickitat Lead Entity 
 
Klickitat County is the lead entity as established in 1999 and it expanded to include WRIA 31 
in 2011.  It includes a citizens’ review committee to evaluate and prioritize habitat projects; 
an adaptive management strategy and habitat work schedule; also a Klickitat technical 
committee to provide technical support.  T he primary function is evaluate and prioritize 
projects for grant funding through salmon recovery funding board program and to date there 
have been 45 projects for a total of $7,892,073 in grant funding.   
 
Groundwater Issues 
 
Groundwater Management Area  
 
Mr. Shuttleworth said the Board instructed the group to send a letter requesting to get out of 
the GWMA and they would be attending a meeting tomorrow to discuss this request.  
Commissioner Delvin commented that he received a p hone call from the Department of 
Ecology Director to talk about that letter and he hoped to have that conversation soon to see 
what they had to say.   
 
Exempt Well Issues for Single Family Dwelling  
 
Mr. Shuttleworth said this related to the committee with Kittitas and Yakima Counties and 
the MOU Benton County was asked to sign. Commissioner Beaver said the County needed to 
implement some strategies but he was not sure the County needed to sign the Memorandum 
of Understanding.   
 
Mr. Shuttleworth provided documentation on water policies for Benton County and said the 
Board previously reviewed water resources and policies that were adopted into the Benton 
County Comprehensive Plan.  He said they have looked at these issues in the past and may 
want to consider them as it reviewed the MOU.  He stated the Planning Commission looked 
at these issues in subdivisions and they are also looked at administratively for short plats.  
Additionally, when building permits for structures with potable water were submitted, they 
were required to complete a form entitled “water availability notification”.    
 
Tom Tebb, Department of Ecology, said the main issue for exempt wells was that any new 
use of groundwater contributed to the declining water in the basin.   
 



4 
 

Commissioner Beaver said that Kittitas, Yakima, and Benton were all in this group but there 
were varying degrees of interest and he wanted to have conclusion about where Benton 
County was going with this and have some direction about what steps they would take.  
 
Commissioner Delvin asked the Board if it wanted to say no to the MOU and state that 
Benton County was going to go out on its own.  He said there were a lot of statements in the 
agreement that were not needed and he was hoping for a more generic version.  
Commissioner Beaver said he was in agreement with not signing the MOU.   
 
MOTION:  C ommissioner Beaver moved that the Board decline to sign the MOU with 
Kittitas and Yakima County regarding exempt wells.  Chairman Small seconded.   
 
Discussion  
 
Commissioner Delvin said he could do that, but wanted to continue to address the issue and 
move forward. Chairman Small said he agreed they should continue to work on the issue with 
the team and legal to see what was best for Benton County. 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
The Board agreed it would work with Mike Shuttleworth and the Conservation District to 
work through these issues to form a plan how it would interact with the public and others and 
to define legal obligations.  Once the information was compiled the Board would have a 
public meeting and workshop to continue to work through the issues.   
 
Agency Comments 
 
Tom Tebb, Regional Director for WA State Dept. of Ecology (Central) said he wanted to 
express appreciation to the County for working through the water issues.  He said he wanted 
to clarify they were in the process of reviewing that MOU and another option they were 
looking at was preparing a more symbolic MOU to work these issues and that was still an 
option.  H e said the Department was disappointed that Benton County was seeking to 
withdraw from the GWMA.  He indicated he wished the County had made it more evident 
there were such issues and that he was still hoping it was a possibility that Benton County 
remain in the group.  He said the issues they faced in the Yakima Basin were difficult and the 
reason they were doing this was because it affected senior water rights.  He said they were 
trying to come up with a partnership to make purchasing property a timely, affordable and 
effective process instead of making rules and closing the door.  He said he hoped that Benton 
County would continue to engage in this process.   
 
Mark Nielsen, Benton Conservation District, provide additional data showing a map of 
Benton County and all the wells in the Dept. of Ecology database.  He said the majority of 
Benton County’s wells were not shown; there were 1900 wells in the GWMA and 13,400 
wells in Benton County (only 10%).  Commissioner Delvin said that maybe an option would 
be to expand the GWMA and Mr. Nielsen said there was nothing that would preclude that.   
 
John Cox, Benton County resident, thanked the Board for discussing this issue.  H e 
commented that water was one of the few natural resources and we needed to take good care 
of it.  He asked who in the audience was there on its own dime (no hands were shown) and 
then said he wanted to know where the citizens were that should be involved in this; he said 



5 
 

he was just asking everyone to be diligent about using the rate payers money.  He said the 
storage project was an excellent presentation and that whenever we do something that leaves 
a footprint, that it should be reviewed very carefully.   
 
Commissioner Beaver stated that the Board was very sensitive to the issue of taxes, to the 
environment, and sensitive to Native Americans and their rights along the river and would 
continue to be aware of that.   
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:13 a.m.   
 
 
______________________________________   ____________________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     Chairman 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, Protective Inspection Services Fund (S. Brown) Prepared by: L Smith Kelty

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

PROTECTIVE INSPECTION SERVICES FUND FUND NUMBER 0149-101,

DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

mf
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: Dept. TRANSFER TO: Dept. 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

524.200 4180 Legal Services $6,917 524.200 4103 Professional Services $6,917

TOTAL $6,917 TOTAL $6,917

Explanation:

Prepared by: L Smith Kelty Date:  May 21, 2013

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Line item transfer needed in order to pay the iWorQ Systems invoice per Resolution 2013 269.

Protective Inspection Services Fund

Protective Inspection Services Fund

000

0149-101



mf
Text Box
b. Contract w/Cerium Networks, Inc. for Purchase of Meraki Cloud Managed Access Points







mf
Text Box
c. City of Richland Letter of Support for Duportail Bridge Project





mf
Text Box
d. Award of Bid for Official County Newspaper to Tri City Herald











 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     5/21/2013   
Subject:            Proposal Award 
Prepared by:       L. Small  
Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _X___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
FACILITIES  

Consent Agenda           __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Per Resolution 2012-445 the Board of Commissioners entered into a Professional Service Contract with 
Design West Architects, PA for architectural and engineering services including complete documentation 
and construction administration for the remodel of the Benton County District Court referred to as the 
Benton County Prosser Courthouse Tenant Improvement Project. 
 
A Request for Proposal (RFP) packet was prepared and the following contractors were solicited from the 
MRSC Small Works Roster and provided the following proposals:   
  
• BANLIN Construction, LLC, Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. BANLICL881CB - $99,500.00 excluding 

WSST 

• Siefken & Sons Construction, Inc., Richland, WA – Cont. Lic. SIEFKSC198MZ  - $105,514.00 

excluding WSST  

• Chervenell Construction Co., Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. CHERVC*254KW – Did not Respond 

• G2 Commercial Construction, Inc., Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. G2COMCC902JB -  Did not respond 

• R.E.A. Commercial, LLC, Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. REACOCL934RC – Did not respond 

• Zeigler Construction, Co., Pasco, WA – Cont. Lic. ZEIGLCC066JQ – Did not respond 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Facilities Manager and Architect reviewed the bid proposals and recommends awarding the 
construction contract to BANLIN Construction, LLC, for a contract amount not to exceed $99,500.00 plus 
WSST as the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This project will be paid out of the Capital Project Fund 0305101, with no supplement needed.  
 
 
MOTION 
Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with the recommendation and awards the 
construction contract for the Benton County Prosser Courthouse TI Project to BANLIN Construction, LLC, 
Kennewick, WA for a contract amount not to exceed $99,500.00 plus WSST, plus the cost of the building 
permit; and  
 
The Board hereby authorizes personnel to prepare the construction contract between Benton County 
and BANLIN, Construction, LLC to be placed on the consent agenda at a later date for the 
Chairman’s signature.   

mf
Text Box
e. Bid Award for the District Court Remodel @ the Courthouse



File:  Original – Lisa Small 
cc:: Auditors; R. Ozuna; DWA; Banlin    Small 

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE CONSTRUCTION OF BENTON COUNTY PROSSER 
COURTHOUSE TENANT IMPROVEMENT (TI) PROJECT TO BANLIN CONSTRUCTION, 
LLC 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 11-735 the Board of Benton County Commissioners entered into an 
agreement with Municipal Research and Service Center of Washington (MRSC) to maintain a 
Small Works Roster for Benton County to utilize for public works projects under $300,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-371 the Board of Commissioners authorized Design West 
Architects to provide an analysis, conceptual ideas, and project budgeting for the possible 
remodel of the Benton County District Court located at the Courthouse in Prosser, WA; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-445 the Board of Commissioners entered into a Professional 
Service Contract with Design West Architects, PA for architectural and engineering services 
including complete documentation and construction administration for the remodel of the Benton 
County District Court referred to as the Benton County Prosser Courthouse Tenant 
Improvement Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal (RFP) packet was prepared and the following contractors 
were solicited from the MRSC Small Works Roster and provided the following proposals:   
  
• BANLIN Construction, LLC, Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. BANLICL881CB - $99,500.00 

excluding WSST 
• Siefken & Sons Construction, Inc., Richland, WA – Cont. Lic. SIEFKSC198MZ  - $105,514.00 

excluding WSST  
• Chervenell Construction Co., Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. CHERVC*254KW – Did not 

Respond 
• G2 Commercial Construction, Inc., Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. G2COMCC902JB -  Did not 

respond 
• R.E.A. Commercial, LLC, Kennewick, WA – Cont. Lic. REACOCL934RC – Did not respond 
• Zeigler Construction, Co., Pasco, WA – Cont. Lic. ZEIGLCC066JQ – Did not respond 
 
WHEREAS, the Request for Proposals were due Tuesday, May 14, 2013 @ 3:30 PM, and not 
thereafter, at the Benton County Commissioners Office, PO Box 190 / 620 Market Street, 
Prosser WA 99350 and were read in public by the Benton County Facilities Manager and 
Project Architect with Design West Architects, PA; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager and Architect reviewed the bid proposals and recommends 
awarding the construction contract to BANLIN Construction, LLC, for a contract amount not to 
exceed $99,500.00 plus WSST as the lowest responsible bidder; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, hereby concurs with the recommendation and awards the construction contract for 
the Benton County Prosser Courthouse TI Project to BANLIN Construction, LLC, Kennewick, 
WA for a contract amount not to exceed $99,500.00 plus WSST, plus the cost of the building 
permit; and  



File:  Original – Lisa Small 
cc:: Auditors; R. Ozuna; DWA; Banlin    Small 

 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes personnel to prepare the 
construction contract between Benton County and BANLIN, Construction, LLC to be placed on 
the consent agenda at a later date for the Chairman’s signature.   
 
 
Dated this    day of   , 2013 
 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 
 
             
             
                   Member 
          
 
             
                   Member 
 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 5-21-13        
Subject: Contract with 

OXARC 
Prepared by:     J.Donley  
Reviewed by:    K.Mercer   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __x__ 
Pass Resolution  __x__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           _x___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION 
 
OSHA requires all firefighting equipment to be periodically inspected and maintained in operating 
condition and that defective equipment shall be immediately replaced. The previous contract for services 
has expired and a new contract is needed in order to service the equipment at all Benton County 
locations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pass the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Amount not to exceed $20,000.00 excluding w.s.s.t (contract expires 4/30/2015) 
 
MOTION 
 

mf
Text Box
f. Contract w/Oxarc, Inc to Provide Fire Extinguisher & Suppression Services



Orig: BC Facilities   J.Donley 
cc:  Auditor; R. Ozuna; Contract Management; D. Docken   

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON 
COUNTY AND OXARC, INC. TO PROVIDE FIRE EXTINGUISHER AND SUPPRESSION 
SERVICES, GENERAL MAINTENANCE, AND INSTALLATION AS NEEDED BY THE 
COUNTY AT ALL BENTON COUNTY LOCATIONS: 
 
WHEREAS, per Benton County resolution 2012-677, “… the formal sealed bidding process may be 
dispensed with for the letting of public works contracts with an estimated cost of less than forty thousand 
dollar ($40,000). For such projects, contracts may be entered into after direct negotiation and 
authorization by the BOCC, with such authorization being in the form of a resolution containing a 
summary of the three (3) bid quotations obtained, with a copy of each quote attached, and being available 
for public inspection”; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County Facilities solicited and received the following proposals to provide fire 
extinguisher and suppression services, general maintenance, and installation as needed by the COUNTY 
at all Benton County locations : 
 
Oxarc, Inc. – Pasco, WA – Extinguisher Recharge $9.50 Suppression System Service $85.00/hr 
Fire Services, LLC – Kennewick, WA – Extinguisher Recharge $15.00 
ABC Fire Control, Inc. – Yakima, WA – Suppression System Service $89.00/hr  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Facilities Manager reviewed the proposals and recommends awarding 
said services to Oxarc, Inc. Pasco, WA as the lowest responsive bidder; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
concurs with the recommendation and authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the attached public 
works contract between Benton County and Oxarc, Inc. for a contract amount not to exceed $20,000.00; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the contract shall begin upon execution of both parties and shall expire 
on April 30, 2015.  
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

                    Commissioners of Benton County, 
                                       Washington 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
    Clerk of the Board 



 
 

 
 - 1 - 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 
COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 
Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and OXARC, 
Inc. with its principal offices at 716 S. Oregon St., Pasco, Wa. 
99301 (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
This Contract consists of these terms and conditions and the 
following documents  
 

a. Exhibit A- Scope of Work/Compensation 
b. Exhibit B – Washington State Prevailing Wage Rates for 

Public Works Contracts 
 
2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 
 
The term of this Contract shall begin upon execution and shall 
expire on April 30, 2015.  The CONTRACTOR shall complete all work by 
the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is otherwise 
specified, no later than the expiration date. 
 
3.  SERVICES PROVIDED  
 
The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 
 
The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide fire extinguisher and suppression 
services, general maintenance, and installation as needed by the 
COUNTY at all Benton County locations as provided in Exhibit A. In 
the event that the requested work encompasses work that is legally 
required to be completed by another type of contractor, CONTRACTOR 
shall inform COUNTY of that fact and shall coordinate with COUNTY 
to complete the work in conjunction with the other contractor.  In 
the event that the requested work requires, under State or local 
law, the issuance of a building permit, CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible for procuring such building permit and arranging for 
inspection and certification of the work. CONTRACTOR may bill 
COUNTY for the full cost of the permit and any labor time for any 
of its employees involved in the permitting process, but may not 
charge any additional processing or other fees that it does not 
actually incur.  Thereafter, upon completion of services, 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     5/21/13   
Subject:    Professional Contact 
Prepared by:       L. Small  
Reviewed by: R Lukson 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 FAIRGROUNDS  

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
Per Resolution 11-651 dated October 18, 2011 the Board of Benton County Commissioners entered 
into a contract with Design West Architects, PA for any anticipated (A&E) services for Benton 
County for a contract amount not to exceed $200,000.  
 
Per Resolution 2012-595 dated October 23, 2012, the Board of County Commissioners approved 
the First Amendment extending the blanket contract an additional year with a new termination date 
of December 31, 2013. 
 
Per Resolution 2012-442 dated August 7, 2013, the Board authorized Design West Architects, PA 
to provide an analysis and planning resources for possible improvements at the Benton County 
Fairgrounds, with one of those improvements being a complete replacement of a new restroom 
building. 
 
Attached is a Resolution and Professional Service Contact between Benton County and Design 
West Architects PA for complete architectural and engineering services including complete 
documentation and construction administration in the amount of $71,700 plus all reimbursable 
expense billed at cost plus 15%, for the Benton County Fairgrounds Restroom Building located in 
Kennewick, WA. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The recommendation is to approve the attached Resolution and Professional Service Contract 
between Benton County and D esign West Architects for A/E services for the Benton County 
Fairgrounds Restroom, with said funds being paid out of the Capital Fund 0305101.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This project will be paid out of the Capital Project Fund 0305101, with no supplement needed.  
 
 
MOTION 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby agrees with the recommendation to enter into 
a Professional Service Contract with Design West Architects, P.A. for architectural and engineering 
services including complete documentation and construction administration for the Benton County 
Fairgrounds Restroom Building located in Kennewick, WA for an amount not to exceed $71,700.00, 
plus all reimbursable expense billed at cost plus 15%.  
 

mf
Cross-Out

mf
Text Box
g. Contract w/Design West Architects, PA for Architectural Services for Fairgrounds Restroom







mf
Text Box
h. Amended Lease Agreement w/Benton-Franklin Fair Association











mf
Text Box
i. Amended Agreement w/Comprehensive/Dependency Health Services for Substance Abuse Treatment







mf
Text Box
j. Amended Contract w/The Personal Touch Cleaning, Inc.













mf
Text Box
k. Authorization for Payment to Attorney M Iaria for Public Defense Services







mf
Text Box
l. Contract w/T Orosco for Excess Contractual Case Cap







mf
Text Box
m. Trainer Contract w/C Poulsen









Consent Agenda
Public Hearing
lst Discussion
2nd Discussion
Other

x
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDÐ

Execute Contract
Pass Resolution X
Pass Ordinance
Pass Motion
Other X

AGENDAITEM
Meeting Date: May 21,2013
Subject: Yakama

Settlement
Prepared by: Stephen

Hallstrom
Reviewed by:

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Benton Countywas named as a co-defendant in litigation in FederalCourt
involving Federal defendants and others, due to the fact that pursuant to contract, the Sheriff assigned a

deputy to the US Marshals task force. The US Marshals (including the deputy) assisted the FBI with the
execution of search warrants on the Yakama Reservation, pursuantto warrants issued bythe Federal Court.
The Yakama aver the execution of the warrants over two years ago, was an unlawful trespass

SUMMARY : See above.

RECOMMENDAT¡ON: Approve a Settlement Agreement between Benton County and the Confederated
Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation, a federally recognized Indian Tribal Government and as parens
patriae on behalf of the enrolled members of the Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

MOTION: Move to approve the resolution before Board of County Commissioners to settle litigation in
Yakima v. Holder, et al.

mf
Text Box
n. Settlement Agreement w/The Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation



RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON

IN THE MATTER OF THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CONFEDERATED
TRIBES AND BANDS OF THE YAKAMA NAT¡ON, A FEDERALLY RECOGNIZED INDIAN TRIBAL
GOVERNMENT AND AS PAREA'S PATRIAE ON BEHALF OF THE ENROLLED MEMBERS OF THE
CONFEDERATED TRIBES AND BANDS OF THE YAKAMA NATION, AND BENTON COUNTY.

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney's Office has reviewed the proposed settlement agreement in the

Federal action. The proposed settlement agreement does not require Benton County to admit fault, nor is
Benton County required to contribute to damage, or attorney fees and costs of plaintiffs; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners have reviewed the recommendation of the Prosecuting
Attorney's Office and finds the recommendation to be justified by the facts and applicable law; and

WHEREAS, Benton County and Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation (Yakama) desire
to enter into the settlement agreement to avoid costly and lengthy litigation and to settle and compromise
any and all claims and disputes of any kind or nature between the parties; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds a settlement agreement with the Yakama plaintiffs

to be appropriate.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Benton County hereby
approve the Settlement Agreement and are authorized to sign the same corporately, or so authorize the
Chair to sign the Settlement Agreement.

DATED this day of May, 2013.

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting-
ot

the Board of Commissioners
Benton County, Washington

Attest.
Clerk of the Board

Orig: Civil
cc: David Sparks; S. Hallstrom I

S. Hallstrom



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This Settlement Agreement is entered into by and between the Confederated

Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation, a federally-recognized Indian tribal govemment

and as parens patriae on behalf of the Enrolled Members of the Confederated Tribes and

Bands of the Yakama Nation, (ooYakama Nation"), and the County of Marshall,

Mississippi, the City of Tupelo, Mississippi, the County of Roanoke, Virginia, the City of
Martinsville, Virginia, the Town of Vinton, Virginia, and the County of Benton,

Washington ("settling Defendants) (singularly "Partyo'; collectively "the Parties"),

relating to matters alleged in Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation v.

Eric Holder, et ol., a lawsuit pending in U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of
Washington under Cause No. CV-l1-3028-RMP ("the Lawsuit"). This Agreement shall

become effective upon the fïnal signature by the Parties at bottom, the date of that final
signature shall be the "Effective Date" of this Agreement.

RECITALS

In June 2011, the Yakama Nation initiated the Lawsuit against each of the Settling

Defendants and various federal law enforcement agencies and employees thereof
("Federal Defendants"), in relation to a federal law enforcement entry upon Yakama

Reservation trust lands on February 16,201I ("the Entry").

The Parties wish to avoid costly and lengtþ litigation and to settle and

compromise any and all claims and disputes of any kind or nature whatsoever between

the Parties, relating to the Entry.

The Parties enter into this Agreement without admitting any liability. This

Agreement shall not be construed as an admission of any wrongdoing, liability, any fact,

or evidence of such, or admission of any violation of law by any of the Parties.

By entering into this Agreement, no Party is making any concessions about its
rights, powers, authorities, or responsibilities, or otherwise expressing any conclusions

about the sovereignty, Treaty-interpretation, constitutional, or other legal issues in the

Lawsuit involving the Parties to this Agreement or other individuals and entities.

By virtue of this Agreement, the Yakama Nation does not waive, alter, or

otherwise diminish the rights, privileges, remedies, authority, or services guaranteed by

the Treaty rWith The Yakama. 12 Stat. 951 (1859). Nor does the Yakama Nation waive,

alter or otherwise diminish its Sovereign Immunity, whether expressed or implied, by

virtue of this Agreement or any action that may arise directly or indirectly from the same,

L



AGREEMENT

Based upon the foregoing, and in consideration for each and every term of this

Agreement, including the above Recitals, the Parties agree as follows:

1. The Parties hereby settle and release all claims against one another. The

Parties hereby fully release any and all existing or previously existing claims and disputes

of any kind or nature whatsoever, against each other and any Party's present and former

officers, employees, agents, and law enforcement ofÍicers (whether federally deputized or

not), as well as any Party's insurance carrier (collectively "Released Parties") - whether

such claims or disputes are known or unknown, asserted or unasserted, and which related

to the Entry (the "Released Claims").

2. The Plaintiff, Yakama Nation, agrees that it will not reinitiate any lawsuit,

claim or legal action against Released Parties related to the Entry or to any and all

allegations and claims set forth in the Complaint and Amended Complaints filed in
United States District Court, Eastern District of Washington, Case No. CV-11-3028'

RMP. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any Released Party infringes upon or threatens

Yakama territory, jurisdiction, or rights, nothing in this Agreement shall prevent Yakama

Nation or any other injured person from bringing any suit, claim or legal action to protect

its rights. The Yakama Nation shall dismiss its claims, Complaints and Amended

Complaints against the Settling Defendants without prejudice and without costs,

attomeyso fees or expenses to any Pdy, by stipulating to and filing Joint Motion To

Dismiss papers within seven (7) business days of the Effective Date. Said Joint Motion
and Order shall provide:

Plaintiff and Defendants the County of Marshall, the City of Tupelo,

Mississippi, the County of Roanoke, the City of Martinsville, the Town of Vinton,

Virginia, and the County of Benton, Washington, jointly move for an order

dismissing Plaintiffs' claims against each other, only, without prejudice and

without fees or costs to anY PartY.

The Parties to this joint motion have reached a compromise and wish to

dismiss all claims against each other, without prejudice, and without fees or costs

to any party.
A proposed Order is frled herewith.

3. The Settling Defendants shall not enter upon Yakama Indian Country (as

defined by 18 U.S.C. ll51 and related federal and state law) without compliance with

applicablé federal, tribal, and state law and applicable treaties. Notwithstanding the

foiegoing, the Settling Defendants shall make all reasonable efforts to seek and obtain

advincelermission, if required by applicable federal, tribal and state law and applicable

Treaties, should they wish to enter upon Yakama Indian Country'

2



4, This Agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the Parties and

the Parties' respective legal representatives, heirs, successors, assigns, employees, agents,

and law enforcement officers (whether federally deputized or not). No other person or

entity shall have any rights, interest or claims hererurder or be entitled to any benefrts

urder or on account of this Agreement as a l;hird-party beneliciary or otherwise.

5. Neither this Agreement or any term or provision hereof, may be changed,

waived, discharged, amended, modified or terminated orally, or in any manner other than

by an instrument in writing signed by all of the Parties hereto. This Agreement may be

signed in counterparts. For all purposes, a facsimile or email copy of a signature shall be

deemed and given the same force and effect as an original manual signature. Each Party

shall take any and all reasonable steps and execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all
further documents that any other Party may reasonably request to effectuate the intent

and purposes of this Agreement.

6. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding of the

Parties with respect to the entire subject matter hereof; and there are no representations,

inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, not embodied herein. The above

recitals are hereby made a part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be deemed to

have been drafted by all the Parties hereto, since all Parties were assisted by their counsel

in reviewing and consenting to this Agreement, and no ambiguity shall be resolved

against any party by virtue of its participation in the drafting of this Agreement.

7. Each Party has the full right and actual authority to enter into this
Agreement.

Confederated Tribes and Bands
of the YakamaNation

County of Marshall, Mississippi

By:

Its:

Date:

City of Tupelo, Mississippi

By:

Its:

Date:

County of Roanoke, Virginia

By:

Its:

Date:

By:

Its:

Date:

3



City of Martinsville, Virginia

By:

Its:

Date:

County of Benton, Washington

Date:

Town of Vinton, Virginia

By:

Its:

Date

By

Its:

4



mf
Text Box
o. Funding Authorization for Nine Canyon Road, Phase 2



mf
Text Box

mf
Text Box
p. Funding Authorization for Nine Canyon Road, Phase 3



mf
Text Box
q. Drainage Improvement District Budget & Levy for 2013 & 2014



mf
Text Box
r. Amended Contract w/American Red Cross to Provide Employee Training







mf
Text Box
s. Swat Interlocal Agreement w/City of Prosser





mf
Text Box
t. Contract w/Densow’s Pharmacy for Pharmaceutical Services







mf
Text Box
u. Agreement w/Tri-City Development Council for Economic Development













03/12/12   G:\_ADMIN\Metrics\Board_update_Agenda.docx 

 

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED    

        

Meeting Date:  Execute Contract   Consent Agenda   

Subject: Central Services Quarterly 

Update 

Pass Resolution   Public Hearing   

 Pass Ordinance   1st Discussion   

 Pass Motion   2nd Discussion   

Prepared By: Teri Holmes Other   Other X  

Reviewed By: Loretta Smith Kelty       

        

 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

Central Services Departmental update.  The 2011 Benton County Information Technology Strategic Plan outlined some specific goal 

orientated projects.  Central Services has been focusing many of our resources on these projects.  The following slides give you an 

overview of our progress.   

 

 

SUMMARY 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 1ST    N/A  

  

 2nd 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

 

 

mf
Text Box
Central Services Department Update ~ T Holmes



Central Services Department 

Sub-total Spent/Encumbered Project Savings
Goal 1: Accessibility and Accountability to Date2 to Date

1.1 Implement permit management 249,000$       19,751$                  229,249$              
1.2 Enhance the County's web presence 114,000        300                         
1.3 Implement court case management 901,000        70,080                    830,920                
1.4 Improve courtroom automation 753,000        48,179                    
1.5 Integrate GIS with core business systems 305,000        28,966                    

2,322,000$ 167,276$              1,060,169$         

Sub-total Spent/Encumbered Project Savings
Goal 2: Informed IT Decision Making to Date2 to Date

2.1 Implement IT governance recommendations 14,000$        -$                       -$                     
2.2 Conduct email/platform study 17,000          9,600                      7,400                   

31,000$      9,600$                  7,400$                

Sub-total Spent/Encumbered Project Savings
Goal 3: Necessary Software and Training to Date2 to Date

3.1 Implement document/records management 794,000$       -$                       -$                     
3.2 Invest in Eden's HR module 171,000        -                             
3.3 Implement prosecution management 271,000        -                             
3.4 Enhance the County's intranet 135,000        30,720                    104,280                
3.5 Migrate email and calendaring off GroupWise 217,000        480,794                  (263,794)              

1,588,000$ 511,514$              (159,514)$          



Central Services Department 

Sub-total Spent/Encumbered Project Savings
Goal 4: Professional IT Service Delivery to Date2 to Date

4.1 Implement IT organization recommendations (monies removed) -$             -$                       -$                     
4.2 Institute a professionally managed help desk 134,000        -                             
4.3 Procure and implement help desk/IT asset management software 134,000        188,965                  
4.5 Assess third-party IT services 24,000          -                             
4.4 Improve IT skill depth 193,000        45,000                    

485,000$    233,965$              -$                   

Sub-total Spent/Encumbered Project Savings
Goal 5: Robust Technical Architecture to Date2 to Date

5.1 Stabilize and virtualize server environment 214,000$       132,076$                 -$                     
5.2 Conduct an independent hardware configuration assessment 16,000          -                             
5.3 Develop and test disaster recovery plan 60,000          16,320                    43,680                 
5.4 Implement wireless connectivity for staff 53,000          88,171                    
5.5 Migrate off Novell 226,000        724,942                  (498,942)              

569,000$    961,509$              (455,262)$          

TOTAL 4,995,000   1,883,864             452,793              

Unified Communications & Mobility3 14,380$                  

1 PTI awarded strategic plan development Oct-2010 2 Includes budgeted and
Plan presented to Board Jun-2011 encumbered expenses 

3 Significant area not addressed by PTI plan for 2013-2014 biennium 
and estimates for 2015



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  05/21/13   _ _     
    

Subject: Geological Fault 
Line Mapping 

Prepared by:       Daniel Ford 
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  ___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda            

_____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            XXX 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
I was approached on Tuesday, May 14 th by Brian Sherrod who is a U.S. ge ological Survey geologist about doing 
mapping of a potentially active geological fault which is exposed at our quarry near Finley, Washington.  
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This work would take approximately 2 weeks and would involve taking photographs of the exposed walls at the quarry 
which will then be rectified using photom etric software which will produce a digital model of the quarry. This 
information will be used to determine if the fault is active and if there has been any recent movement which will aid in 
updating the seismic hazard potential for the region. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
I recommend that we allow the U.S. Geological survey of the Finley Quarry site which will aid the USGS Earthquake 
Science Center in ascertaining the condition of the Wallula Gap fault in an effort to be better informed of any seismic 
possibility in the region. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This work will have no fiscal impact to the county. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to allow U.S. Geological Survey  Geologist Brian Sherrod access to th e Finley quarry which is owned and 
maintained by Benton County for the purposes of conduc ting photographic mapping of the exposed strand of the 
Wallula Gap fault for determination of activity and for the purpose of ascertaining the potential seismic hazard to the 
region. 

mf
Text Box
Geological Fault Line Mapping Request ~ D Ford



Earthquake	  Science	  Center	  
Seattle	  Field	  Office	  @	  Dept.	  of	  Earth	  and	  Space	  Sciences	  
University	  of	  Washington,	  Seattle,	  WA	  	  98195	  
	  

May	  14,	  2013	  
	  
	  
Daniel	  S.	  Ford	  
County	  Engineer	  
Benton	  County	  Public	  Works	  
Engineering	  Division	  
	  
Dear	  Daniel	  –	  
	  
I	  am	  a	  U.S.	  Geological	  Survey	  geologist	  working	  on	  earthquake	  hazards	  in	  central	  
Washington.	  I	  am	  currently	  involved	  in	  a	  collaborative	  project	  with	  other	  geologists	  
and	  engineers	  at	  the	  Hanford	  Site	  on	  updating	  the	  regional	  seismic	  hazards	  for	  
central	  Washington.	  Many	  years	  ago,	  geologists	  at	  Hanford	  recognized	  a	  potentially	  
active	  fault	  near	  Wallula	  Gap,	  and	  identified	  an	  exposed	  strand	  of	  this	  fault	  in	  a	  
quarry	  owned	  by	  Benton	  County	  near	  Finley,	  Washington.	  I	  am	  writing	  you	  seeking	  
permission	  and	  access	  to	  this	  quarry	  in	  order	  to	  properly	  map	  the	  exposed	  strand	  of	  
the	  Wallula	  fault.	  If	  this	  fault	  in	  the	  quarry	  shows	  evidence	  of	  recent	  movement,	  it	  
will	  provide	  valuable	  information	  required	  for	  updating	  the	  seismic	  hazard	  of	  the	  
region.	  
	  
Our	  work	  in	  the	  quarry	  is	  fairly	  simple.	  	  We	  need	  access	  to	  the	  quarry	  to	  photograph	  
the	  quarry	  wall.	  These	  photographs	  are	  rectified	  using	  photogrammetric	  software,	  
which	  we	  then	  use	  to	  produce	  a	  digital	  model	  of	  the	  quarry	  wall.	  	  We	  print	  sections	  
of	  this	  digital	  model	  and	  use	  that	  as	  our	  mapping	  base,	  which	  we	  map	  stratigraphic	  
contacts,	  soils,	  bedrock	  units,	  and	  of	  course,	  geologic	  structures	  related	  to	  faulting.	  
Samples	  of	  various	  geologic	  materials	  are	  often	  taken	  for	  lab	  analyses	  such	  as	  
radiocarbon	  dating	  and	  geochemistry	  (to	  determine	  specific	  rock	  types).	  We	  
compile	  all	  of	  this	  information	  in	  a	  digital	  map	  made	  available	  to	  the	  public	  via	  a	  
standard	  USGS	  publication	  on	  the	  Internet.	  	  	  
	  
We	  anticipate	  needing	  access	  to	  the	  site	  for	  about	  2	  weeks	  while	  we	  complete	  our	  
work	  and	  would	  like	  to	  get	  started	  as	  soon	  as	  possible.	  You	  told	  me	  this	  afternoon	  
that	  the	  Benton	  County	  Commissioners	  will	  have	  to	  vote	  on	  this	  issue	  –	  I	  will	  be	  
available	  to	  come	  to	  Prosser	  for	  that	  meeting	  if	  it	  will	  help	  expedite	  obtaining	  
permission	  and	  access.	  Please	  let	  me	  know	  if	  you	  need	  any	  more	  information	  and	  if	  
you	  need	  me	  to	  come	  for	  the	  next	  Commissioners	  meeting.	  
	  
Best	  regards,	  

	  
Brian	  Sherrod	  
Research	  Geologist,	  USGS	  
253-‐653-‐8358	  cell	  /	  email:	  bsherrod@usgs.gov	  



mf
Text Box
Proposed Kennewick Shop Update ~ S Becken




	Agenda Minutes 051413
	Approval of Minutes
	Unscheduled Visitors
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	Agenda Minutes 051513
	CA - Building a
	CA - Central Services b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Facilities e
	Award Resolution .pdf
	Chairman of the Board

	Award Resolution .pdf
	Chairman of the Board

	Action Sheet for Architectual Contract - Dist Ct TI.pdf
	FACILITIES 
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION


	CA - Fairgrounds f
	CA - Fairgrounds g
	Action Sheet for Architectual Contract - Fairgrounds Restroom Building.pdf
	COMMISSIONERS 
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION


	CA - Fairgrounds h
	CA - Human Services i
	CA - Juvenile j
	CA - OPD k
	CA - OPD l
	CA - Personnel m
	CA - Prosecuting Attorney n
	CA - Public Works o
	CA - Public Works p
	CA - Public Works q
	CA - Sheriff r
	CA - Sheriff s
	CA - Sheriff t
	CA - Sustainable u
	Timed - Central Services Update
	Timed - Geological Mapping
	Timed - Kennewick Shop



